NACAA

. « 4 =L “

National Association of 2 &

N r -3 e / . )]. Nx‘ i
County Agricultural Agents D e

2005

NACAA
BOARD
CONFERENCE
CALL
MINUTES

March 22, 2005

Submitted by:
N. Fred Miller, NACAA Secretary



NACAA BOARD CONFERENCE CALL
March 22,2005

MINUTES
Budget and Finance Report— Chuck Schwartau............ccccoeevviiiiiiniiiiiieniiiee e, 2
Conference Call FINANCES ..........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiieeeeeieee ettt aeee e 3
National Committee APPOINEMENTS.......uvviieeriiriireeiiiieeeeriiieeeeriieeeeesiareeeeneneeeeeeenees 3
Regional Workshop Reports.........coocuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 4
Registration Issue of The COUNtY AQENT..........coovviiiiiiieeiee e 4
Electronic Communicators POSTHON ..........cuviiiiiiiiiieeiiiieeeeiiiee e 5
Helms-Briscoe/Western Region Update...........ccccvvieeeiiiiiieeniiiiieeiiiieeeeiieee e 5
AMY/PIC Policy Manual Review COMMILLEE ...........vvereeriiiiieeeniiiieeeriieeeeeiiieee e 6
Candidates for Secretary and Vice President...........ccccveveeiiiiiieiiiiieiieniiieeeeieeeens 6
ONEI? <.ttt e ettt ettt et e ettt as 7

Members present on the call: Glenn Rogers, Chuck Otte, Frank FitzSimons, Chuck
Schwartau, Fred Miller, Elmo Collum, Jim Riddell, Mike Christian, Sandy Macnab, Scott
Hawbaker, and Curtis Grissom.

President Rogers called the conference call to order at 3:08 PM. Glenn apologized for
providing the incorrect phone number for the conference call and expressed his
appreciation for everyone’s follow through and persistence. Glenn stated that there
wouldn’t be much Board action included in today’s conference call and that the emphasis
would be getting everybody up to speed in reference to the upcoming Spring Board
meeting. Glenn asked if there were any agenda items that needed to be added to the
Spring Board meeting agenda. Mickey Cummings asked that he be given the opportunity
to discuss the Hall of Fame Award. There being no other additions, Glenn proceeded to
review the Spring Board agenda with the Board to ensure there would be no surprises.

Budget and Financ e Report B Chuck Schwartau

Glenn asked Chuck Schwartau to brief the Board on the reports to be shared with the
Board during the Spring Board meeting. Chuck S. stated he had sent the audit
information to the fiscal committee for them to review prior to the Spring Board meeting.
Chuck S. advised the Board to take a look at the Preliminary Report for 2004 and let him
know if you see anything that looks out of kilter. This feedback will give him the
opportunity to take a look at any discrepancies in coding. Other folks reviewing and
offering questions pertaining to expenses gives Chuck S. opportunities to better refine the
system.

Chuck S. also asked the Board to consider how much of the detail needed to be shared
with the Voting Delegates in Buffalo. Having made this decision early would make it
easier for Chuck to get ready for Buffalo. Sandy Macnab indicated he had not received
this report and asked Glenn/Chuck to email him a copy. Glenn indicated he would and



asked the Board to review this information and be prepared to discuss it in detail at the
Spring Board meeting next Friday.

Elmo asked Chuck S. to check under ordinary income and expenses under income. It
lists membership dues as active, life membership dues, and other. What is the other?
Chuck S. indicated he didn’t have it in front of him but would check and get back to
Elmo. He indicated it was probably an associate membership or something that was paid
by an association but he would be sure to check. Elmo stated that it was $42,750 and
unlikely to be a minor group of people. Chuck S. stated it was likely a miscoding and he
would take a look.

Chuck Schwartau asked if the Committee Chairs were being notified as sponsorship
money was secured? Glenn and Chuck stated they hadn’t been notifying the chairs.
Scott stated he had not but would be happy to send out a notice letting the Chairs know
where the Board currently stood regarding donors/sponsors. Chuck S. stated it would be
helpful for the Chairs to know where they stood so they would be able to start work on
their program if sponsorship has been secured. Chuck Otte stated he planned a
conference call with the Council Chairs on Thursday and would forward this information
to the Council Chairs. On the flip side of that coin, Scott pointed out that it was difficult
to pitch a program if there were concerns whether or not a program would be pulled
together or not. The Committees need to be working under the assumption that funds
would be secured.

Conference Call Fi nances

President Rogers asked if Chuck S. was keeping track of the conference call
expenditures? Glenn was concerned that the costs were starting to mount up and the
Board needed to consider this expense in the budget. Glenn stated he thought the Board
and Committees had spent upwards of $500-600? Chuck stated it might have been as
great as $500 but it’s not a critical amount for this year. However, it certainly needed to
be accounted for in next year’s budget. If NACAA planned to be using conference calls
on a regular basis, which seemed to be the trend given the effectiveness of these calls, it
needed to be accounted for in the budget. Mickey had indicated he’d like to continue this
procedure in the future so the fiscal committee needed to take a look at these costs and
come up with a recommendation for next week.

National Committe e Appointme nts

Chuck Otte indicated the Council Chairs would be discussing this in a conference call on
Thursday. There are still a number of holes that need to be filled but Otte indicate that
they were further along than they were on “deadline” day. People have really responded
from additional contacts and there have been some additional names that have been
submitted as potential Chairs. However, there will be some work ahead to get all of these
positions filled prior to the AM/PIC.



Chuck O. also indicated there are at least one application for the Pinnacle and Service to
America and World Agriculture Awards. Chuck O. will be meeting with the Regional
Directors to determine if those applications were worthy to move forward with
recommendations. Chuck will provide copies of those applications to the Regional
Directors so they can review them in advance of the Spring Board meeting and come to a
quick consensus at Burlington over lunch on Thursday.

Regional Worksho p Reports

Glenn requested that the Regional Directors submit written reports to the Board at Spring
Board meeting. Sandy asked if this should be included as part of their “regular”
Directors reports or separate? Glenn stated they should be separate. Glenn stated that
JCEP was looking into the possibility of combining Regional meetings and having two
Regional meetings composed of two Regions apiece as a cost saving alternative to the
current system of individual regional meetings. Glenn made the motion during the JCEP
meeting to allow some investigation into the potential benefits and negatives from this
type of arrangement. However, Glenn didn’t feel comfortable pursuing this option until
receiving some feedback from the Board — particularly the Regional Directors and also
getting some additional information from the PILD participants. There was consideration
being given to a rotating system where for example the Southern and North East would
be combined this year and the next year it would be a different combination of Regions.
This would facilitate idea interchange between the various regions. Glenn stated it would
be nice to have written reports and then have a brief discussion on this issue.

Sandy Macnab stated he thought it was a great idea if the Board was looking at ways to
cut back on expenses. The details should be relatively easy to work out since the agenda
was similar at each of the Regional Workshops. Glenn stated he would devote 20
minutes or so at Spring Board for discussion on this issue.

Registration Issue of The County Agent

Glenn stated that the Registration issue of the magazine was a “tough one” for Scott but
he was finalizing the printing of the forthcoming issue. Scott indicated that the issue was
being printed this week and be mailed on Friday or Monday. Scott planned to bring
copies to the Spring Board and will be sending copies to all donors along with the
commercial exhibit forms and letter of invitation to the donors. Scott was hoping that the
“web guy” he had been working with to produce the online registration materials would
have everything up and working by the April 1 deadline. Scott hoped to have everything
working so he could provide a demonstration for the Board. Scott needed to coordinate
with the Buffalo AM/PIC Planning Committee what would be included pertaining to
registration on their AM/PIC website.

Glenn observed that there had been a number of problems with the addresses utilized for
the E-County Agent. There were a number of returns and Scott has been working on
correcting that problem. Scott felt that a number of the returned messages were
University “spam-blockers” that noted the AOL account. Scott will send all future E-



County Agents through his FBC web account in the hopes that the messages would go
through better. Scott felt that many of the returned messages were valid addresses and
there was no need to redo that whole distribution list.

Glenn asked Scott to provide an update on the RISE database survey at Spring Board.
Frank asked if there were enough copies of the Registration issue to provide to each State
Administration Director? Scott stated there were enough copies available. Current
Membership information indicated that NACAA membership was down 50-60 people
from last year but there are 302 new members. Scott indicated he had not received
Indiana’s information and didn’t have Illinois’s money but had the rest of the North
Central. Scott also stated he had not heard from Montana or Washington. Sandy stated
he’d called both states and had received a reply from Washington but nothing from
Montana.

Scott observed that this was a particularly important issue for new members to receive
and he planned to review the state rosters as they trickle in and ensure that the new
members receive this issue if he has to send it first class. Glenn stated that he was in the
process of working on the new member letter and that would be mailed out shortly.

Electronic Commu nicators Po sition

Glenn observed that Laura Watts had been given an opportunity and had retired with
twenty-five years service. This was good for her but would leave a big hole for NACAA.
There will be an advertisement in the forthcoming issue of the magazine but Glenn
encouraged the Board to spread the availability of this opportunity around and encourage
qualified folks to apply. Sandy asked if this would involve hosting the NACAA website?
Scott stated it was currently hosted on a site in Peoria or Decatur. Currently Penn State
hosted the list serves or email lists.

Scott stated the position would not be that difficult except for the time involved in
updating those lists. Once they are set up at the host site, the primary responsibility was
updating the lists following the AM/PIC plus the monthly updates. Laura has also been
helpful with the recent issues of the E-County Agent. Scott stated there was an excellent
job description for this position in the Policy Handbook that Laura Watts had prepared.
The upcoming advertisement in The County Agent essentially directed interested
individuals to visit and review this information.

Helms -Briscoe/W estern Regio n Update

There will be another update resulting from telephone conversations with Patty Richburg
and Jill Slater pertaining to the Western Region site selection. Sandy will also be
meeting with them on May 12-15 to discuss potential sites in the state of Oregon. Glenn
stated this would give Sandy the opportunity to meet with Patty and Jill and Glenn asked
Sandy to provide any updated information during Spring Board.



AM/PIC Policy M anual Revie w Committ ee

Glenn stated that Elmo and his crew (Frank, Mickey, Sandy, and Chuck Otte) had been
hard at work on this process with four teleconference calls already held with one to go.
Glenn asked when the final version would be available for review. Elmo stated he hoped
to get it to the Board by March 28 so everyone would have the opportunity to review it on
the way to Burlington. He advised the Board to jot down questions and issues and be
prepared to discuss them so we don’t have to spend hours on the review.

Glenn advised the Board that there were some significant issues that were being
addressed and the Board was encouraged to look at the finances and where NACAA’s
money was being spent relative to registration reimbursements and the splits in particular.
Elmo and his crew have worked real hard and have recommended some significant
changes. The Board was encouraged to consider these changes and the potential impacts
they might have on the organization. There were a number of issues still creating
heartburn and stress. Steve Munk has been asked to give a call during the Board meeting
to address any questions pertaining to the AM/PIC Review Committee’s
recommendations. Frank stated he had talked to Steve Munk last week and he planned to
have a final report to the Board prior to their arrival in Burlington. Elmo planned to send
a formal matrix showing the relative costs of the new costs versus the old policy.

Chuck stated his group was on the road again and he needed to bow out of the
conversation. Glenn asked him to hold on the line for a few minutes while everyone
provided an update on the current medical issues affecting Board members. Glenn
advised the affected members that NACAA was important but family was more
important. Glenn had made arrangements to have a phone available for conference calls
if those members having family medical challenges were unable to attend. All affected
members currently planned to attend if at all possible.

Frank advised that he needed Nominating Committee names and addresses from the
Regional Directors. Frank suggested they bring them to the meeting and hand them to
him or mail them to the below address which is Frank’s current mailing address:

Frank FitzSimons
4286 Howard Gap Road
Hendersonville, NC 28792

Frank stated he had the names from the Southern Region already.

Candidates for Se cretary and Vice Pres ident

Glenn observed that there were candidates for Secretary as well as Vice President — one
for each office. Glenn was unaware of any others at the present time but the process
would remain open until 30 days prior to the AM/PIC.



Other?

Chuck Otte had a question on the current Donor report concerning the final numbers.
Scott stated the total doesn’t add up and he needed to talk with Mickey and verify which
numbers match up with the various categories. This report contains Mickey’s numbers
and Scott was uncomfortable answering the question without some feedback from
Mickey.

Glenn stated there were some issues relative to SARE money. Glenn had a conference
call scheduled next week with Jill Auburn to discuss issues that had occurred with SARE
over the past couple of years. There had been problems getting the grant turned in on
time and there were some significant reductions being proposed in SARE funding. Jill
was considering implementing a similar program as NASA where they sponsor a one-
week long workshop for selected individuals. Glenn doesn’t know for sure but he
suspects the funding for this new program will be reallocated from the money that had
been utilized to support host state activities in the past. Glenn had not had a direct
contact yet but would give more feedback following the conference call. Glenn
encouraged Chuck Otte to speak with the Council Chairs and let them know the
discussion is going on. Glenn was hoping he was wrong and that this would be new
money but he was bracing for the potential for a change. Glenn was considering the
potential to meet with Jill during the PILD Conference but he would confirm in advance
following last year’s experience where the SARE representatives failed to show up.

Elmo will have all of section 7 on a diskette and will bring it to Burlington to share with
Curtis to make changes as approved by the Board. There were a tremendous number of
changes recommended versus the old policy and the section has increased from fourteen
pages to twenty-four.

Glenn observed that there were some issues relative to the 2005 AM/PIC in Buffalo. Erie
County did not pass its budget and there have been some issues relative to the loss of
Extension positions following a 75% cut. Things have been up in the air but Glenn
planned to meet with New York and the other Committee chairs immediately following
Spring Board to firm everything up. The plans were to hold the BBQ at the park but we
may have to mow the field ourselves! However, we were assured that no one would be
arrested for trespassing. Glenn stated it was a bit of a challenge but he was sure
everything would work out fine.

Glenn stated that the dress in Vermont would be casual and no one should plan to bring a
suit or tie. He encouraged everyone to call the Inn at Essex upon arrival unless you hear
otherwise from Glenn. Glenn stated he had everyone’s arrival times and looked forward
to seeing everyone in Vermont. With no other business to be discussed, the meeting was
adjourned at 4:03 PM.

Respectfully submitted,

N. Fred Miller
NACAA Secretary






